
 

Any person who requires accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the District office at (909) 797-5117, at least 
48 hours prior to the meeting to request a disability-related modification or accommodation. 
 
Materials that are provided to the Board of Directors after the meeting packet is compiled and distributed will be made available 
for public review during normal business hours at the District office located at 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa.  Meeting materials 
are also available on the District’s website at www.yvwd.dst.ca.us 
 

 
 

Notice and Agenda of a Board Workshop 
Tuesday, April 10, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. 

 

 

MEETING LOCATION: District Administration Building 
 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa 

 

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD: Director Chris Mann, Division 1 
Director Bruce Granlund, Division 2 
Director Jay Bogh, Division 3 
Director Lonni Granlund, Division 4 
Director Tom Shalhoub, Division 5 

 

 

I. Call to Order 

II. Public Comments  At this time, members of the public may address the Board of Directors on matters within its 

jurisdiction; however, no action or significant discussion may take place on any item not on the meeting agenda.   

III. Staff Report 

IV. Presentations 

A. The Genetics Behind the Detection of Taste and Odor and the Monitoring of Low Level 
Emerging Chemical Compounds in Our Water Resources [Workshop Memorandum No. 
18-096 - Page 6 of 141] 

V. Strategic Planning 

A. Strategic Planning Update for the Implementation of Energy Efficiency Projects and 
Opportunities for Various Facilities [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-097 - Page 20 of 141] 

VI. Operational Updates 

A. Status Report on the Annual Repairs and Rehabilitation of the Yucaipa Valley Regional 
Water Filtration Facility [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-098 - Page 25 of 141] 

VII. Capital Improvement Projects 

A. Status Report on the Emergency Repairs for Drinking Water Reservoir 17.1.1 [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 18-099 - Page 30 of 141] 

B. Status Report on the Construction of an 8-Inch Sewer Mainline in Yucaipa Boulevard 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 18-100 - Page 32 of 141] 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 1 of 141

http://www.yvwd.dst.ca.us/


Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop Page 2 
 
 

 

C. Status Report on the 5th Street Widening Project [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-101 - 
Page 33 of 141] 

D. Status Report on the Installation of a Parallel Sewer Segment of Mainline on 6th Place as 
part of the Wildwood Creek Bridge Improvements [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-102 - 
Page 35 of 141] 

VIII. Public Policy 

A. Discussion Regarding the Development of a Policy Related to Accessory Dwelling Units 
and Other Multiple Unit Developments [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-103 - Page 37 of 
141] 

B. Discussion Regarding Draft Resolution No. 2018-xx Establishing the Methodology to 
Calculate and the Collection of Facility Capacity Charges Related to the Purchase of Water 
Resources for New Development within the Boundary of the San Gorgonio Pass Water 
Agency and the City of Calimesa [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-104 - Page 38 of 141] 

C. Discussion Regarding Draft Resolution No. 2018-xx Updating the Water Meter Installation 
Fees for Drinking Water and Recycled Water and Identifying the Use of 50” Water Meter 
Boxes for Drinking Water and Recycled Water Infrastructure [Workshop Memorandum No. 
18-105 - Page 49 of 141] 

IX. Development Projects 

A. Overview of a Proposed Development Agreement with Nassif Gobrial for Property Located 
at 12278 5th Street, Yucaipa [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-106 - Page 60 of 141] 

B. Overview of a Proposed Development Agreement for a Commercial Carwash on Yucaipa 
Boulevard, Yucaipa [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-107 - Page 73 of 141] 

C. Overview of a Proposed Development Agreement with Lennar Homes for the Summerwind 
Development - Calimesa [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-108 - Page 75 of 141] 

X. Administrative Items 

A. Presentation of the Unaudited Financial Report for the Period Ending on March 31, 2018 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 18-109 - Page 80 of 141] 

B. Presentation of Budget Adjustments for Fiscal Year 2017-18 [Workshop Memorandum No. 
18-110 - Page 104 of 141] 

C. Review of a Proposal for Environmental Liability Insurance for Sewer and Brineline 
Operations [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-111 - Page 115 of 141] 

XI. Director Comments 

XII. Closed Session 

A. Conference with Real Property Negotiator(s) (Government Code 54956.8) 
Property: Assessor’s Parcel Numbers: 0301-211-020 and 0301-201-030 
Agency Negotiator:  Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Negotiating Parties:  Mesa Verde Ventures LLC c/o Betek Corporation Under Negotiation: 
Terms of Payment and Price 

B. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code 54957.6) 
District Negotiator: Joseph Zoba, General Manager, and Allison Edmisten, Chief Financial 
Officer 
Employee Organization: IBEW Local Union 1436-YVWD Employees Association 

C. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code 54957.6) 
District Negotiator: Joseph Zoba, General Manager, and Allison Edmisten, Chief Financial 
Officer 
Employee Organization: Supervisory Bargaining Group 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 2 of 141



Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop Page 3 
 
 

 

D. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code 54957.6) 
District Negotiator: Joseph Zoba, General Manager, and Allison Edmisten, Chief Financial 
Officer 
Employee Organization: Management Bargaining Group 

E. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code 54957.6) 
Unrepresented Employee: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

XIII. Adjournment  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 3 of 141



 

Staff Report 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 4 of 141



 

 

Presentations 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 5 of 141



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-096 

Date: April 10, 2018 

From: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: The Genetics Behind the Detection of Taste and Odor and the Monitoring of Low 
Level Emerging Chemical Compounds in Our Water Resources 

 
Over the past several years, the 
Yucaipa Valley Water District has 
received taste and odor complaints in 
the late summer months.  Most of the 
complaints seem to be attributed to the 
decomposition of algae and naturally 
occurring organic compounds is 
surface water supplies received from 
the State Water Project.  The San 
Bernardino Valley Municipal Water 
District and the San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency have been very 
responsive and helpful to assist with 
solutions to this issue.  This assistance 
has included the purchase and 
installation of solar mixers that reduce 
the potential for algae formation in the 
Crafton Hills Reservoir. 
 

The taste and odor issues from the surface 
water is largely associated with Geosmin and 
Methyl-Isoborneol (MIB) which are naturally 
occurring compounds that have a very 
strong, earthy taste and odor.  Geosmin can 
be detected by human noses at very low 
levels, in the range of 20-30 nanograms (one 
millionth of a milligram) per liter, but some 
people who are particularly sensitive may 
notice it at levels above 10.  While Geosmin 
and MIB produce a musty, earthy smell and 
taste in drinking water, they are not harmful 
at levels present in drinking water. 
 
Geosmin and MIB cannot be removed from 
water using normal water treatment 
processes due to their molecular size.  
Removal would require granular activated 
carbon or reverse osmosis membranes. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 6 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-096  Page 2 of 13 

 

 
 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District has been monitoring for Geosmin and MIB over the past several 
years looking for these chemical compounds at a resolution of parts per trillion (nanograms per 
liter).    
 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 7 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-096  Page 3 of 13 

The most recent episode of the taste and odor issues correlated with the laboratory data in August 
and September 2016.  With additional imported water supplies available in 2017 and changes to 
the operation of the Crafton Hills Reservoir, the taste and odor issues have subsided.   

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 8 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-096  Page 4 of 13 

In addition to the taste and odor issues at the molecular level, the Yucaipa Valley Water District 
and the Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District experience operational issues with algae that tend 
to bind spreading basin operations and clog the strainers at the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water 
Filtration Facility.  Recognizing this issue, the San Bernardino 
Valley Municipal Water District and the San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency continue to pursue solutions that balance 
operational issues with the State Water Project with the 
operational issues of the retail water customers. 
 
The Genetics of Taste 
 
In 1931, a chemist named Arthur Fox was pouring some 
powdered PTC into a bottle. When some of the powder 
accidentally blew into the air, a colleague standing nearby 
complained that the dust tasted bitter. Fox tasted nothing at 
all.  Curious how they could be tasting the chemical differently, 
they tasted it again.  The results were the same.  Fox had his 
friends and family try the chemical then describe how it tasted.  
Some people tasted nothing.  Some found it intensely bitter, 
and still others thought it tasted only slightly bitter. 
 
Soon after its discovery, geneticists determined that there is 
an inherited component that influences how we taste PTC.  
Today we know that the ability to taste PTC (or not) is conveyed by a single gene that codes for 
a taste receptor on the tongue.  The PTC gene, TAS2R38, was discovered in 2003. 
 
There are two common forms (or alleles) of the PTC gene, and at least five rare forms. One of 
the common forms is a tasting allele, and the other is a non-tasting allele.  Each allele codes for 
a bitter taste receptor protein with a slightly different shape.  The shape of the receptor protein 
determines how strongly it can bind to PTC.  Since all people have two copies of every gene, 
combinations of the bitter taste gene variants determine whether someone finds PTC intensely 
bitter, somewhat bitter, or without taste at all. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 9 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-096  Page 5 of 13 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 10 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-096  Page 6 of 13 

 
 
Although PTC is not found in nature, the 
ability to taste it correlates strongly with 
the ability to taste other bitter 
substances that do occur naturally, 
many of which are toxins. 
 
Plants produce a variety of toxic 
compounds in order to protect 
themselves from being eaten.  The 
ability to discern bitter tastes evolved as 
a mechanism to prevent early humans 
from eating poisonous plants.  Humans 
have about 30 genes that code for bitter 
taste receptors.  Each receptor can 
interact with several compounds, 
allowing people to taste a wide variety of 
bitter substances. 
 
 
Source: http://learn.genetics.utah.edu/content/basics/ptc/ 
 

 
The following study by the University of California at Riverside provide the results of the first blind 
taste test of recycled wastewater.  This study is interesting in that it helps to dismiss the myths 
and anticipated taste of recycled water.  
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 11 of 141

http://learn.genetics.utah.edu/content/basics/ptc/


Workshop Memorandum No. 18-096  Page 7 of 13 

 
 

Toilet-to-tap: Gross to think about, but how does it taste? 

UC Riverside researchers conduct first blind taste test of recycled wastewater 

By J.D. Warren On MARCH 13, 2018 

 

RIVERSIDE, CA. (www.ucr.edu) – 
Here’s a blind test taste like Pepsi 
never imagined. 

Researchers at the University of 
California, Riverside, recently 
published a study of recycled 
wastewater that did not focus on its 
safety-which has long been 
established-but rather its taste. 

After years of drought, the notion of 
drinking recycled wastewater has 
gained momentum in California.  
Thoughts turned to all the water being 
discarded - to supplementing 
“conventional” groundwater with 
recycled water. 

But consumers were quick to flag the 
euphemism of “recycled.” Some have even branded the technology “toilet to tap.” 

“It seems that this term (wastewater), and the idea of recycled water in general, evokes disgust 
reactions,” said Daniel Harmon, a graduate student in psychology and the lead author in the study 
on water taste.  The study published in print in the February edition of the journal Appetite. 

However, Harmon added: “It is important to make recycled water less scary to people who are 
concerned about it, as it is an important source of water now and in the future.” 

The water’s safety has been the source of most related research. The wastewater is treated using 
reverse osmosis. A preferred technology is called indirect potable reuse, or IDR. IDR reintroduces 
treated wastewater into groundwater supplies, where it re-enters the drinking water system. Six 
California water agencies already employ IDR. These include the Water Replenishment District 
of Southern California, the Orange County Water District, the Los Angeles County Department of 
Public Works, the Inland Empire Utilities District, the city of Los Angeles, and the city of Oxnard). 

Studies have found IDR removes virtually all contaminants. But no one has considered its relative 
taste – at least, not in a blind taste test, and not in a scientific study. 

The UCR study included 143 people, who were asked to compare IDR-treated tap water with 
conventional tap water and commercially bottled water. The waters were presented in similar cups 
and were unlabeled, hence the participants were “blind” to the source of the water. After tasting 
the water, participants ranked the samples’ taste from one to five, then also in categories including 
texture, temperature, smell, and color. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 12 of 141

https://ucrtoday.ucr.edu/author/johnwar


Workshop Memorandum No. 18-096  Page 8 of 13 

The researchers weighed factors that influence taste perception. 

There are genetic differences in taste sensitivity. That was gauged using a tried-and-true 
measure: paper strips coated with the chemical phenylthiocarbomide, or PTC. Those who find 
the strip’s taste to be bitter are considered to have more sensitive taste. 

Researchers also considered two personality traits that help determine water preference. These 
traits are referred to as “Openness to Experience” and “Neuroticism.” Openness is how receptive 
people are to novel and diverse experiences. Neuroticism refers to anxiety and insecurity. 

At the outset, researchers hypothesized the three waters would score equally. In fact, one 
emerged the least preferred. 

“The groundwater-based water was not as well liked as IDR or bottled water,” said Mary Gauvain, 
a professor of psychology at UC Riverside and co-author of the study. “We think that happened 
because IDR and bottled water go through remarkably similar treatment processes, so they have 
low levels of the types of tastes people tend to dislike.” 

The more nervous, anxious people in the study expressed the preference for IDR and bottled 
water and were more negative about the more mineral-rich tap water. People more open to new 
experiences liked the three samples about the same. 

Another surprise: Women preferred bottled water two-to-one over men. 

The researchers’ best guess: Women register higher “disgust reactions” than men, which means 
their reactions to tastes they dislike are more extreme. These disgust reactions are the subject of 
the team’s next research paper. 

In their conclusion, researchers suggest that favorable comparisons between reverse osmosis 
and bottled water may make consumers more amenable to drinking recycled wastewater. In 
particular, they suggest, marketing to women – who make most consumer purchasing decisions 
– should focus on these similarities, and also cater to women’s demonstrated openness to new 
experiences. 

“We think this research will help us find out what factors people pay attention to in their water 
decisions, and what populations need to be persuaded to drink IDR water and how to persuade 
them,” Harmon said. 

Aside from Harmon and Gauvain, researchers in the study include Isaac Arthur, who recently 
completed his undergraduate studies at UC Riverside, Drew Story, a graduate student at UC 
Riverside, and Z Reisz, who received his Ph.D. at UC Riverside and is now at Santa Barbara City 
College. The research was supported by an Integrative Graduate Education and Research 
Traineeship, or IGERT, award from the National Science Foundation. 
 

 
Source:  https://ucrtoday.ucr.edu/52156 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 13 of 141

https://ucrtoday.ucr.edu/52156


Workshop Memorandum No. 18-096  Page 9 of 13 

The Yucaipa Valley Water District recognizes that we need to monitor not only the regulated 
chemical compounds, but also chemical compounds that are not regulated by state or federal 
agencies.  These chemical compounds typically found at levels in the part per billion range and 
originate from the following sources: 
 

• Pharmaceuticals 
o Hormones 
o Antibiotics 
o Antibacterial 

• Personal Care Products 

• Herbicides 

• Pesticides and Insect Repellents 

• Industrial Additives 

• Artificial Sweeteners 
 
The District has been conducting various studies on these chemicals and conducted a research 
study that included samples from the following locations: 
 

• State Water Project (Raw Water) 

• Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility - Final Effluent (Drinking Water) 

• Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility - Influent 

• Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility - Effluent 

• Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility - RO Permeate 
 
The table shown below provides a summary of the results from the independent laboratory. 
 

 

Untreated 
Surface 
Water 

Treated 
Drinking 
Water 

Sewer 
Influent 

Tertiary Treated 
Recycled Water 

Advanced Treated 
Recycled Water with 

Reverse Osmosis 
System 

Total Number 
of Chemical 
Compounds 

Studied 

91 91 91 91 91 

Total Number 
of Constituents 

Detected 
18 11 59 46 3 

 
Specific chemical names, laboratory results, and detection limits are provided below. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 14 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-096  Page 10 of 13 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 15 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-096  Page 11 of 13 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 16 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-096  Page 12 of 13 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 17 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-096  Page 13 of 13 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 18 of 141



 

 

Strategic Planning 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 19 of 141



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-097 

Date: April 10, 2018 

From: Kathryn Hallberg, Management Analyst 

Subject: Strategic Planning Update for the Implementation of Energy Efficiency Projects 
and Opportunities for Various Facilities  

 
Over the past several decades, the Yucaipa Valley Water District has embarked on a series of 
capital improvement projects that have created integrated systems of drinking water, recycled 
water, sewer treatment, and brine disposal facilities.  The integration of these facilities has set the 
Yucaipa Valley Water District on a course to sustainably maintain exceptionally pure and 
renewable water resources. 
 

 
 
In preparation for the next decade of projects, the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water 
District has embarked on a strategic planning process that set priorities for future capital 
improvement projects.  These improvements will be structured to provide additional supplies of 
high quality water for future use within our community and make the District more sustainable and 
resilient.   

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 20 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-097  Page 2 of 4 

 
Strategic Planning Priorities by the Board of Directors (not in order of priority): 
 

• Direct Potable Reuse - Plan and evaluate the opportunities and constraints related to 
implementation of direct potable reuse facilities.  This strategic goal will involve the Salinity 
and Groundwater Enhancement (SAGE) project at the Wochholz Regional Water 
Recycling Facility; the Salinity Concentrate Reduction and Minimization (SCRAM) Project 
at the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility; and may include a new water 
filtration facility at the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility.  This strategic priority 
was established by the Board of Directors on March 8, 2018. 
 

• Indirect Potable Reuse - Plan and evaluate the opportunities and constraints related to 
implementation of indirect potable reuse.  This strategic goal will involve the recharge of 
recycled water at various locations throughout the District’s service area which will also 
involve the development of recharge facilities.  This strategic priority was established by 
the Board of Directors on March 8, 2018. 
 

• Energy Efficiency Projects - Plan and evaluate the opportunities and constraints related 
to implementation of solar, microturbines, biogas, and other technologies to stabilize 
energy expenses.  This strategic goal will likely involve the investigation of innovative 
technologies and programs to become more energy efficient.  This strategic priority was 
established by the Board of Directors on March 8, 2018. 
 

• Consolidation of District Facilities - Plan and evaluate the opportunities and constraints 
related to the colocation and consolidation of District offices and work areas to be in close 
proximity of existing operational areas.  This strategic goal will likely involve the relocation 
of the District office on Second Street to an area near the Wochholz Regional Water 
Recycling Facility.  This strategic priority was established by the Board of Directors on 
March 8, 2018. 
 

• Beaumont Basin Recharge Facilities - Plan and evaluate the opportunities and 
constraints related to the construction of recharge facilities in the Beaumont Basin to 
maximize the operational efficiency of groundwater within the Beaumont adjudication 
area.  This strategic priority was established by the Board of Directors on March 8, 2018. 
 

• Public Relations and Outreach - Plan and implement a program to gain and enhance 
the District’s presence involving: 

o Social media;  
o Website refresh and upgrades;  
o Video clips;  
o Summary of the District’s operations; 
o Historical information; and 
o Near real-time press releases. 

This strategic priority was established by the Board of Directors on March 8, 2018. 
 
Energy Efficiency Evaluation 
 
The District staff has compiled information about our energy demands at various facilities.  The 
purpose of this workshop item is to discuss the preparation a release of a Request for Information 
about Energy Reduction and Management Opportunities. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 21 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-097  Page 3 of 4 

 
 

$0.00

$500.00

$1,000.00

$1,500.00

$2,000.00

$2,500.00

$3,000.00
Ja

n
 1

9
8

8

Ja
n

 1
9

8
9

D
ec

 1
9

8
9

N
o

v 
1

9
9

0

O
ct

 1
9

9
1

Se
p

 1
9

9
2

A
u

g 
1

9
9

3

Ju
l 1

9
9

4

M
ay

 1
9

9
5

M
ay

 1
9

9
6

A
p

r 
1

9
9

7

M
ar

 1
9

9
8

Fe
b

 1
9

9
9

Ja
n

 2
0

0
0

D
ec

 2
0

0
0

N
o

v 
2

0
0

1

O
ct

 2
0

0
2

Se
p

 2
0

0
3

A
u

g 
2

0
0

4

Ju
l 2

0
0

5

Ju
n

 2
0

0
6

M
ay

 2
0

0
7

A
p

r 
2

0
0

8

M
ar

 2
0

0
9

Fe
b

 2
0

1
0

Ja
n

 2
0

1
1

D
ec

 2
0

1
1

N
o

v 
2

0
1

2

Se
p

 2
0

1
3

A
u

g 
2

0
1

4

Ju
l 2

0
1

5

Ju
n

 2
0

1
6

M
ay

 2
0

1
7

Yucaipa Valley Water District Administrative Complex 
Monthly Energy Cost 1988-2018

District Office Public Works

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 22 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-097  Page 4 of 4 

 

$0.00

$10,000.00

$20,000.00

$30,000.00

$40,000.00

$50,000.00

$60,000.00

$70,000.00

$80,000.00

$90,000.00

$100,000.00
Ja

n
 1

9
8

8

D
ec

 1
9

8
8

N
o

v 
1

9
8

9

O
ct

 1
9

9
0

Se
p

 1
9

9
1

A
u

g 
1

9
9

2

Ju
l 1

9
9

3

Ju
n

 1
9

9
4

M
ay

 1
9

9
5

A
p

r 
1

9
9

6

M
ar

 1
9

9
7

Fe
b

 1
9

9
8

Ja
n

 1
9

9
9

N
o

v 
1

9
9

9

O
ct

 2
0

0
0

Se
p

 2
0

0
1

A
u

g 
2

0
0

2

Ju
l 2

0
0

3

Ju
n

 2
0

0
4

M
ay

 2
0

0
5

A
p

r 
2

0
0

6

M
ar

 2
0

0
7

Fe
b

 2
0

0
8

Ja
n

 2
0

0
9

D
ec

 2
0

0
9

N
o

v 
2

0
1

0

O
ct

 2
0

1
1

Se
p

 2
0

1
2

A
u

g 
2

0
1

3

Ju
l 2

0
1

4

Ju
n

 2
0

1
5

M
ay

 2
0

1
6

A
p

r 
2

0
1

7

Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility 
Energy Cost 1988-2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 23 of 141



 

 

Operational Updates 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 24 of 141



 

Director Memorandum 18-098 

Date: April 10, 2018 

From: Mike Kostelecky, Operations Manager 

Subject: Status Report on the Annual Repairs and Rehabilitation of the Yucaipa Valley 
Regional Water Filtration Facility 

 
Each year the District staff takes the Yucaipa 
Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 
(YVRWFF) out of service to perform routine 
inspections and repairs of the facility.  In 
some instances, this opportunity to inspect 
the facility has resulted in unexpected 
repairs that need to be completed promptly 
to prepare the drinking water facility for 
summertime operation. 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to 
discuss the status and schedule of the 
anticipated repairs. 
 
On March 20, 2018, the Board of Directors 
ratified the process plumbing repairs of the YVRWFF with W.M. Lyles Co. for a sum not to exceed 
$43,600 [Director Memorandum No. 18-049]. 
 
The work is scheduled to begin the first week of April and is anticipated to be complete within 2-
3 weeks. 
 
Upon dewatering the blending structure, staff discovered two flanges with coating failure and 
requested an estimate from J. Colon Coatings, Inc.  

             

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 25 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-098  Page 2 of 4 

Additionally, staff requested to include the recoating of fifteen feet of the combined plant effluent 
pipe and fifteen feet of the influent nanofiltration pipe.  The estimate for the identified infrastructure 
repairs will cost $11,700, is expected to be completed in 5-6 days, and is scheduled to begin the 
week of April 10.  
   

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 26 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-098  Page 3 of 4 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 27 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-098  Page 4 of 4 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 28 of 141



 

 

Capital Improvement Projects 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 29 of 141



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-099 

Date: April 10, 2018 

From: Mike Kostelecky, Operations Manager 

Subject: Status Report on the Emergency Repairs for Drinking Water Reservoir 17.1.1 

 
On November 21, 2017, the Board of 
Directors authorized emergency coating 
repairs for drinking water reservoir R-17.1.1 
with Superior Tank Solutions [Director 
Memorandum No. 17-108]. 
 
On Monday, January 29, 2018, Superior 
Tank Solutions began repairs.  Upon 
removing the coal tar enamel from the floor, 
it was evident that the floor needed 
replacement, not repair.  The existing floor 
consists of numerous welded patches in 
various sizes and thousands of pits from 
erosion.  This metal has been worn thin and 
is now a liability to the District.  The side 
shell had approximately ten holes that have 
since been repaired.  
 
At the board meeting on February 20, 2018, 
the Board of Directors ratified the 
authorization for Superior Tank Solutions to 
proceed with the necessary repair work. 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to 
provide an update on the status of the 
repairs and give a timeline for the return of 
service. 
 
Completed repairs to date:  

• Inside coating 

• New floor  

• New roof hatch and vent 

• Influent/effluent pipe welding 
 
Upon lifting the side shell to allow access for the new floor panels, several holes developed along 
the chime due to the thin and eroded metal. Repairs will consist of a chime band patch that will 
bolt to the existing hardware and then a layer of epoxy. Additionally, upon setting the side shell 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 30 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-099  Page 2 of 2 

down the influent/effluent pipe configuration does not lay as it did and will need to be configured 
differently to allow for the installation of the isolation valve. 
 

 
 
Upon completion of the identified repairs, the reservoir will be filled with two feet of water and will 
sit to ensure there is no leakage present. Once verified, the reservoir will be disinfected, drained, 
filled, and then two series of bacteriological samples will be collected before returning to service 
in the drinking water distribution system which is anticipated by the end of April.   
 
 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 31 of 141



 

 

 

Workshop Memorandum 18-100 

Date: April 10, 2018 

From: Matthew Porras, Management Analyst 

Subject: Status Report on the Construction of an 8-Inch Sewer Mainline in Yucaipa 
Boulevard 

 
The City of Yucaipa is currently under construction with the Yucaipa Boulevard Widening Project 
that involves the widening and reconstruction of Yucaipa Boulevard from 18th Street to Avenue 
E/Hampton Road.  In conjunction with this project, the District is preparing to proceed with sewer 
construction consisting of approximately 2,400 linear feet of 8-inch main line in Yucaipa Boulevard 
between 18th Street and Avenue E/Hampton Road as well as Ridgecrest Drive between Yucaipa 
Boulevard and Sierra Linda Street. 
 

 
 
The sewer main project is categorically exempt from environmental review in accordance with 
the California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15301(C). 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 32 of 141



 

 

 

Workshop Memorandum 18-101 

Date: April 10, 2018 

From: Matthew Porras, Management Analyst 

Subject: Status Report on the 5th Street Widening Project  

 
The City of Yucaipa is in the process of making street improvements to 5th Street, west of Yucaipa 
Boulevard and north of Avenue E.  The project includes widening of the roadway, installing curb 
and gutter, and adding sidewalks.  The project will require relocation of utilities including Recycled 
Water, Drinking Water, and Sewer.   
 
District staff is working to identify the scope of the impact related to District facilities.  An 
agreement between the District and the City of Yucaipa will be drafted to define any cost sharing 
opportunities. 
 
Financial Consideration 
 
The District’s contribution to the project is 
currently undefined until additional information is 
acquired.  
 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 33 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-101  Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 34 of 141



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-102 

Date: April 10, 2018 

From: Matthew Porras, Management Analyst 

Subject: Status Report on the Installation of a Parallel Sewer Segment of Mainline on 6th 
Place as part of the Wildwood Creek Bridge Improvements 

 
District staff has been coordinating with the 
City of Yucaipa for the construction of a 
bridge on Sixth Place at the crossing of 
Wildwood Creek. 
 
The District staff is proposing to install a 
spare sewer mainline in Sixth Place together 
with the box culvert construction proposed by 
the City of Yucaipa.  The installation of this 
segment of sewer will provide alternatives for 
the replacement and extension of sewer 
mainlines in the Districts’ service area. 
 
 
 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 35 of 141



 

 

Public Policy 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 36 of 141



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-103 

Date: April 10, 2018 

From: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Discussion Regarding the Development of a Policy Related to Accessory Dwelling 
Units and Other Multiple Unit Developments 

 
The District staff is in the process of developing a standardized policy for Accessory Dwelling 
Units (ADUs).  At the board workshop on February 27, 2018, the following elements of the policy 
were discussed: 
 
Single Residential Unit – Same Parcel 

o Facility Capacity Charge - Standard Fees Apply 
o Monthly Fixed and Variable Water and Sewer Charges - Standard Fees Apply  

 

Single Residential Unit with an Accessory Dwelling Unit - Same Parcel Up to 800 Square 
Feet 

o Facility Capacity Charge – No Additional Charge for Accessory Dwelling Unit 
o Fixed Monthly Water and Sewer Charges - Standard Fees x 2.0 

▪ Casitas with either sink or toilet - Standard Fees x 1.25 
▪ Casitas with 2 of 3 (either a sink, toilet, and/or kitchen) - Standard Fees x 1.5 

o Variable Monthly Water Fees – Standard Fees with Facility Capacity Charge 
Element 

 

Two Residential Units – Same Parcel and Accessory Dwelling Units more than 801 
square feet 

o Facility Capacity Charge – Standard Fees Apply x 2.0 
o Fixed Monthly Water and Sewer Charges – Standard Fees x 2.0 
o Variable Monthly Water Fees – Standard Fees with Facility Capacity Charge 

Element 
 

Three or more Residential Units and/or Commercial, Industrial, Institutional 
o Facility Capacity Charge – Based on Water Supply Fixture Units – Uniform Plumbing 

Code 
o Fixed Monthly Water and Sewer Charges – Standard Fees x Calculated # of EDUs 
o Variable Monthly Water Fees – Standard Fees with Facility Capacity Charge 

Element 
 

Customer Initiated Request for an Additional Water Meter 
o Facility Capacity Charge – Standard Fees Apply x 2.0 
o Fixed Monthly Water and Sewer Charges – Standard Fees x 2.0 
o Variable Monthly Water Fees – Standard Fees with Facility Capacity Charge 

Element 
 

These concepts will be discussed at the board workshop to further develop the overall business 
processes related to accessory dwelling units in the District’s service area. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 37 of 141



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-104 

Date: April 10, 2018 

From: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Discussion Regarding Draft Resolution No. 2018-xx Establishing the Methodology 
to Calculate and the Collection of Facility Capacity Charges Related to the 
Purchase of Water Resources for New Development within the Boundary of the 
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency and the City of Calimesa 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District currently charges $13,478 per dwelling unit for faciliate capacity 
charges for each new residential unit constructed in our service area.  This fee recovers costs 
expended by the District for the construction of the following facilities: 
 

Description of Drinking Water Component 
Existing Facility 

Capacity Charges 

Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility $3,811 

Recycled Water System $823 

Booster Pumping Plants $885 

Pipeline Facilities $4,407 

Water Storage Reservoirs $3,552 

Total $13,478 

 
While the District’s development related fees are typically more expensive than neighboring 
agencies, the Yucaipa Valley Water District has consistently pursued extensive improvements 
and fully-integrated solutions to secure long-term, reliable, and resilient water and sewer service 
for our customers.   
 
On July 27, 2015, the Board of Directors of the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (“SGPWA”) 
adopted Resolution No. 2015-05 adopting facility capacity fees for new infrastructure and 
additional water resources.  The adoption of this resolution was deemed necessary by the 
SGPWA to “…meet future increasing demands for SGPWA supplemental water to the SGPWA 
service area which will require additional water facilities to be constructed to distribute water and 
to acquire additional water rights to meet future increasing demands.”1   
 
At the board workshops on April 25, 2017, May 30, 2017, July 11, 2017, August 8, 2017, and 
September 12, 2017, the District staff reviewed and discussed methodology that can be used to 

                                                
1 This fee only is applicable to developments in the Calimesa portion of the Yucaipa Valley Water District service area.  
The portion of the Yucaipa Valley Water District in the City of Yucaipa receives imported water servce from the San 
Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 38 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-104  Page 2 of 11 

 

calculate the cost of securing permanent water supplies using the nexus report adopted by the 
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency in July 2015.  Based on the suggested methodology, the 
District staff prepared a draft resolution to adopt the methodology and implement a new facility 
capacity fee component applicable for new homes in the Calimesa portion of our service area. 
 
Based on the sample methodology, the additional cost per residential dwelling unit in the City of 
Calimesa will be $4,683 for a home that is dual-plumbed to receive recycled water for front and 
rear yard irrigation use.  This charge would not be applicable to new development in the City of 
Yucaipa. 
 

Methodology Used to Calculate the  
Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge for  

Supplemental Water Resources 
 

• One Domestic Use Factor (1.0 DUF) = 10 kgal/monthly billing period 
o Annual Drinking Water Demand = 120 kgal per year - Estimated2 

o Daily Drinking Water Demand of 330 gpd/EDU - Estimated3 

• 0% Interest 

• 49.0% State Water Project Reliability Factor - Ten-Year Rolling Average 
o 2017 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 85% (DWR Notice 17-05) 
o 2016 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 60% (DWR Notice 16-06) 
o 2015 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 20% (DWR Notice 15-03) 
o 2014 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 20% (DWR Notice 14-08) 
o 2013 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 35% (DWR Notice 13-09) 
o 2012 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 65% (DWR Notice 12-09) 
o 2011 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 80% (DWR Notice 11-06) 
o 2010 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 50% (DWR Notice 10-11) 
o 2009 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 40% (DWR Notice 09-07) 
o 2008 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 35% (DWR Notice 08-03) 

• $6,231/Acre Foot Permanent Water Right Estimate 
o Most Recent San Gorgonio Pass Permanent Water Right Purchase Estimate 

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
Calculation: 
 

120 kgal x 
1,000 gal 

x 
0.000003069 AF 

x 
$6,231 

x 
1 

= $4,683/EDU 
1 kgal gallon Acre Foot 0.490 Reliability 

 
 
  

                                                
2 This quantity may be updated or modified in a project specific development agreement. 
3 This quantity may be updated or modified in a project specific development agreement. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 39 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-104  Page 3 of 11 

 

On September 19, 2017, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2017-23 Establishing the 
Methodology to Calculate and Collect Facility Capacity Charges for the Purchase of Permanent 
Wtaer Resources for Development within the Boundary of the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
and the City of Calimesa. 
 
 
Section 2 of Resolution No. 2017-23 provides for the implementation of this fee by review of the 
Board of Directors with the preparation of each development agreement.  To provide certainty for 
the existing developments of Tract No. 26295 and Tract No. 30386, as well as in-fill lots, the 
District staff is recommeding the modification of Resolution No. 2017-23 to include the following 
lanugage in Section 2.F. 
 

F. For single lot residential in-fill developments and development projects 
currently under development (such as Tract No. 30386 and Tract No. 26925), 
the applicable Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge shall be 
calculated as if the residential developments are dual-plumbed homes. 

 
Upon review by the Board of Directors, the District staff will conduct a public hearing for 
consideration of the modified resolution. 
 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 40 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-104  Page 4 of 11 

 

DRAFT RESOLUTION NO. 2018-xx 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT ESTABLISHING 
THE METHODOLOGY TO CALCULATE AND COLLECT FACILITY CAPACITY 

CHARGES RELATED TO THE PURCHASE OF PERMANENT WATER RESOURCES 
FOR NEW DEVELOPMENT WITHIN THE BOUNDARY OF THE SAN GORGONIO 

PASS WATER AGENCY AND THE CITY OF CALIMESA 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Yucaipa Valley Water District (the “District”) is a public agency of the State of 
California organized and existing pursuant to the provisions of the County Water District Law of 
this State (Section 30000, et seq. of the Water Code); and 
 
WHEREAS, the District has adopted Facility Capacity Charges for drinking water, sewer, and 
recycled water services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Directors reviewed Resolution No. 2015-05 adopted by the 
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (the “Pass Water Agency”) and its Capacity Fee Study and 
documentation (“Study”) supporting the need for supplemental water to provide service to new 
development within the boundary of the Pass Water Agency; and   
 
WHEREAS, the above-referenced Study was considered by the District’s Board of Directors at 
several board workshops, board meetings, and the public hearing; and   
 
WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Directors is expected to secure supplemental water from the 
Pass Water Agency when a permanent source of supply is secured and available to provide 
service to new development within the service area of the Pass Water Agency; and 
 
WHEREAS, the purpose of the supplemental water capacity charge is to purchase and/or finance, 
in whole or in part, permanent water rights dedicated to the District or fund the implementation of 
a similar program that provides the same permanent water supply for new development within 
the boundary of both the District and the Pass Water Agency; and   
 
WHEREAS, the fee structure and methodology established herein is set forth as the supplemental 
water fee adopted by the Pass Water Agency (as may be modified) in its Resolution No. 2015-
05, Section 7 as a reasonable estimate for securing supplemental water rights unless modified 
by the District’s Board of Directors; and   
 
WHEREAS, the facts and evidence presented to the District’s Board of Directors during previous 
board workshops and board meetings, including the Pass Water Agency’s Study, demonstrate 
that the facility capacity charge related to supplemental water to be levied by the District will not 
exceed the estimated reasonable cost for providing the services for which the capacity charges 
are imposed and, therefore, complies with Government Code Section 66013; and   
 
WHEREAS, the District is relying upon the facts and evidence presented in the Pass Water 
Agency’s Study to support the need for the supplemental facility capacity charge expected to be 
assessed by the Pass Water Agency; and 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 41 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-104  Page 5 of 11 

 

WHEREAS, the supplemental water facility capacity charge established herein is exempt from 
the California Environmental Quality Act, Public Resources Code, Section 21080(b)(8) because 
the charges are imposed to obtain funds necessary to maintain services within the District; and   
WHEREAS, this resolution shall be implemented to supplement the facility capacity charges 
currently in effect by the Yucaipa Valley Water District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the charges set forth herein are being adopted following a public hearing and notices 
provided in accordance with the requirements of Government Code, Section 66000, et seq., 
 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water 
District, as follows: 
 
1. Purpose and Implementation.  The charges set forth herein are for the purpose of 

implementing the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency Resolution No. 2015-05 provided as 
Exhibit A and as supported by the Pass Water Agency’s Study. 

 
2. Implementation of the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency Resolution No. 2015-05.  The 

Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District hereby directs the General Manager 
to include language in development agreements within the boundary of the San Gorgonio 
Pass Water Agency, subject to further review and approval by the Board of Directors, 
adequate to ensure permanent water resources are secured for all new development within 
the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency boundary: 
 
A. All new development shall be required to be dual-plumbed with recycled water to 

meet the irrigation demands; and drinking water to meet drinking water and fire flow 
demands. 

 
B. A Domestic Use Factor (DUF) shall be based on an equivalent volume of drinking 

water used to meet domestic water demands for a typical equivalent single-family 
residential dwelling unit (EDU).  The District staff is directed to provide information to 
evaluate the conversion factor for the DUF based on data acquired in the future.  For 
purposes of this resolution, one DUF is equal to 10 kgal per monthly billing period.   

 
C. Drinking water demand shall be determined for each parcel in units of gallons per day 

per Equivalent Dwelling Unit (gpd/EDU) and expressed as a Domestic Use Factor 
(DUF) to 1/10th.  The DUF will be used the calculate the Supplemental Water Facility 
Capacity Charge for each parcel within the Pass Water Agency service area. 
 
Typical components used to calculate the Supplemental Water Facility Capacity 
Charge for the purchase of permanent water supplies shall include: (i) the DUF for 
each parcel; (ii) the lesser of either 0% or the actual interest charge incurred by the 
District necessary to finance the construction of facilities or purchase of supplemental 
water rights; (iii) the rolling average of ten prior years of State Water Project reliability 
as determined by the California Department of Water Resources in effect on 
September 30th of each calendar year; and (iv) the estimated or actual cost of 
securing permanent supplemental water supplies by the San Gorgonio Pass Water 
Agency.   
 
An example of the calculation methodology is provided in Exhibit B. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 42 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-104  Page 6 of 11 

 

 
D. Property owners and/or developers that provide sufficient permanent secured water 

rights and/or water resources shall receive a credit for the Supplemental Water 
Facility Capacity Charge required by this resolution if the secured water resources 
are permanently dedicated to the Yucaipa Valley Water District prior to executing a 
development agreement for the subject development. 

 
E. Based on the example calculation methodology illustrated in Exhibit B, the 

Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge shall automatically be adjusted without 
further action of the Board of Directors based on (i) changes by the San Gorgonio 
Pass Water Agency as provided in Resolution No. 2015-05 and subsequent versions; 
and (ii) on October 1st of each year based on the State Water Project reliability 
determination as of September 30th by the California Department of Water 
Resources.   

 
F. For single lot residential in-fill developments and development projects currently 

under development (such as Tract No. 30386 and Tract No. 26925), the applicable 
Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge shall be calculated as if the residential 
developments are dual-plumbed homes. 

 
3. Monthly Water Demands in Excess of Paid Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge.  

The Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District hereby directs the implementation 
of a surcharge for drinking water demands by customers that exceed the quantity of 
Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge as determined and assessed to each parcel 
for the use of supplemental water rights on an as needed basis. 

 
A. The Domestic Use Factor (DUF) used to calculate the Supplemental Water Facility 

Capacity Charge shall evaluated each billing period to determine if the quantity of 
drinking water delivered exceeded the DUF purchased for the property.   

 
B. If the quantity of drinking water delivered is equal to or less than the DUF used to 

calculate the Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge, then no surcharge shall 
be applied. 

 
C. If the quantity of drinking water delivered is greater than the DUF used to calculate 

the Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge, then the surcharge shall be 
applied as provided in Exhibit C. 

 
4. Equivalent Alternatives to Secured Supplemental Water Sources.  The Board of Directors of 

the Yucaipa Valley Water District hereby directs the District staff to pursue the planning and 
implementation of direct potable reuse of recycled water as a feasible alternative to securing 
supplemental imported water from areas outside of the Yucaipa Valley Water District.  Funds 
collected pursuant to this Resolution may be substituted for constructing and implementing 
a direct potable reuse project at the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility and the 
Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility.  Furthermore, the District staff is directed 
to pursue Federal and State funding to bridge the anticipated shortfall in funds if this 
equivalent source of supply becomes a reliable alternative to imported water. 

 
5. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective on July 1, 2018 and shall remain in 

effect until such time as it is rescinded or superseded.   
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 43 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-104  Page 7 of 11 

 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 17th day of April 2018. 
 
  YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

   

  Jay Bogh, President Board of Directors 

   
ATTEST:   

   

Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager   

 
 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 44 of 141



Exhibit A 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 45 of 141



Exhibit A 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 46 of 141



Exhibit A 

 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 47 of 141



Sample Methodology to Calculate the Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge 
 
 
Assumptions: 
 

• One Domestic Use Factor (1.0 DUF) = 10 kgal/monthly billing period 
o Estimated Annual Drinking Water Demand = 120 kgal per year  

o Estimated Daily Drinking Water Demand of 330 gpd/EDU 

 

• 0% Interest 
 

• 49.0% State Water Project Reliability Factor - Ten-Year Rolling Average 
o 2017 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 85% (DWR Notice 17-05) 
o 2016 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 60% (DWR Notice 16-06) 
o 2015 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 20% (DWR Notice 15-03) 
o 2014 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 20% (DWR Notice 14-08) 
o 2013 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 35% (DWR Notice 13-09) 
o 2012 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 65% (DWR Notice 12-09) 
o 2011 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 80% (DWR Notice 11-06) 
o 2010 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 50% (DWR Notice 10-11) 
o 2009 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 40% (DWR Notice 09-07) 
o 2008 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 35% (DWR Notice 08-03) 

• $6,231/Acre Foot Permanent Water Right Estimate 
o Most Recent San Gorgonio Pass Permanent Water Right Purchase Estimate 

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
Calculation: 
 

120 kgal x 
1,000 gal 

x 
0.000003069 AF 

x 
$6,231 

x 
1 

= $4,683/EDU 
1 kgal gallon Acre Foot 0.490 Reliability 

 
 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 48 of 141



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-105 

Date: April 10, 2018 

From: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Discussion Regarding Draft Resolution No. 2018-xx Updating the Water Meter 
Installation Fees for Drinking Water and Recycled Water and Identifying the Use 
of 50” Water Meter Boxes for Drinking Water and Recycled Water Infrastructure 

 
At the board meeting on March 6, 2018, the Board of Directors continued the discussion about 
the use and implementation of 50” water meter boxes.  The District staff has been in 
communication with the Building Industry Association and provided information attached to this 
memorandum. 
 
At several recent workshop 
meetings, the Board of Directors 
discussed the installation of the 50” 
long water meter boxes for new 
development.  These larger water 
meter boxes are useful to protect the 
Advance Meter Infrastructure (AMI) 
equipment as well as provide ample 
space to meet the fire sprinkler 
requirements for new construction. 
 
 

  
YVWD standard meter boxes for dual-plumbed communities. 

 

 
YVWD meter box without a sidewalk for a large-lot, rural application.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 49 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-105  Page 2 of 10 

 

RESOLUTION NO 2018-xx 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
UPDATING THE WATER METER INSTALLATION FEES FOR DRINKING WATER 
AND RECYCLED WATER AND IDENTIFYING THE USE OF 50” WATER METER 
BOXES FOR DRINKING WATER AND RECYCLED WATER INFRASTRUCTURE 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Yucaipa Valley Water District (the “District”) has updated the cost for installing 
drinking water and recycled water meters based on a cost evaluation associated with providing 
this service; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District has updated the water meter service standards and individual parts list 
to address residential fire sprinkler requirements, dual-plumbed backflow protection, and 
automated meter infrastructure technology; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District staff has presented the cost information and options for cost recovery at 
publicly noticed meetings and workshops; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District desires to implement the use of 50” water meter boxes for the protection 
of drinking water and recycled water infrastructure. 
 

____________________ 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the District that the following 
Guidelines are hereby adopted: 
 
1. Drinking Water and Recycled Water Meter Installation Charge.  The cost associated with the 

installation of water meters shall be as follows: 
 

Classification of Water Meter Installation 
Water Meter 

Installation Fee 

¾” Drinking Water Meter Installation $490 

¾” Recycled Water Meter Installation $490 

1” Recycled Water Meter Installation $560 

1” Drinking Water Meter Installation with Fire Sprinklers $860 

1” Drinking Water Meter Installation with Fire Sprinklers at a Dual-
Plumbed Residential Dwelling 

$1,030 

 
The Water Meter Installation Fee shall be paid prior to scheduling the installation of the water 
meter. 
 

2. Larger Drinking Water and Recycled Water Meter Installation Charge.  The charge for the 
installation of a larger water meter and/or a water meter classification not provided above 
shall be the actual cost of all labor, material, and equipment charges, plus employee benefits, 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 50 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-105  Page 3 of 10 

 

overhead, and administrative surcharges pursuant to the latest District resolution.  A deposit 
of the estimated water meter installation cost shall be paid prior to scheduling the work.  Any 
variance from the estimated water meter installation cost shall be remedied by District staff 
and the customer within 30 days following the activation of the water meter.  Typical 
delinquent charges shall apply for unpaid amounts owed to the District. 

 
3. Requirements for the Installation of a 50” Water Meter Box.  The Yucaipa Valley Water 

District has adopted standard drawings and specifications related to the use of a 50” water 
meter box to protect the infrastructure necessary to provide drinking water and recycled water 
service to our customers.  The following conditions will require the installation of a 50” water 
meter box for drinking water and recycled water applications: 
 
A. All new residential developments required to install curb, gutters and sidewalks. 

 
i. Residential developments consisting of four (4) or less dwelling units on 

individual parcels will be provided an opportunity to purchase a 50” water 
meter box from the District inventory as provided below: 
 

50” Water Meter Box $195.83 
Solid Cover for Half of Box $109.86 
AMI Preparation and Reading Lid Cutout  $122.06 
Reading Lid Insert $  16.00 

Total $443.75 
 
Rounded $445.00 

 
The 50” water meter box will be available for pickup from the District office by 
the property owner and does not include the cost of water meter related 
appurtenances. 

 
B. All non-residential development, including but not limited to commercial, institutional, 

and industrial projects. 
 
C. All installations of recycled water meters and related infrastructure. 
 
D. Replacements of existing drinking water or recycled water service pipelines when 

they exist in a sidewalk.  If a sidewalk does not exist, written authorization is required 
from the property owner prior to the installation of a 50” water meter box at the time 
of service line replacement.  Without prior written authorization, a meter box that 
matches the existing meter box will be reinstalled. 

 
3. Effective Date.  Previous resolutions regarding water meter installation charges are hereby 

superseded and replaced by the applicable sections identified above.  This Resolution shall 
be effective immediately and shall remain in effect until it is rescinded or superseded.   

 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 51 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-105  Page 4 of 10 

 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 17th day of April 2018. 
 
  YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

   

  Jay Bogh, President Board of Directors 

   
ATTEST:   

   

Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager   

 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 52 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-105  Page 5 of 10 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 53 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-105  Page 6 of 10 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 54 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-105  Page 7 of 10 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 55 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-105  Page 8 of 10 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 56 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-105  Page 9 of 10 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 57 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-105  Page 10 of 10 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 58 of 141



 

 

Development Projects 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 59 of 141



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-106 

Date: April 10, 2018 

From: Matthew Porras, Management Analyst 

Subject: Overview of a Proposed Development Agreement with Nassif Gobrial for Property 
Located at 12278 5th Street, Yucaipa   

 
District staff shared the attached agreement with Mr. Nassif Gobrial as directed with the concepts 
discussed in the Board Workshop on March 13, 2018 [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-091].  In 
a discussion with Mr. Gobrial, he requested the District consider adding the installation of a single 
drinking water service as a part of the agreement. 
 
Background 
 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District currently provides Drinking Water service and Sanitary Sewer 
service to the property APN 318-142-30 at 12278 5th Street in Yucaipa. The addition of a single 
water service and sewer lateral has been requested by the Property Owner.  Upon investigation 
of the property, District staff identified that Residence B [see figure below] is connected to a septic 
system.  The connection to a septic system at Residence B contradicts District billing records.  
This parcel has been incorrectly billed for two units of sewer when only Residence A [see figure 
below] is connected to sewer and Residence B is actually connected to a septic system. 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 60 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-106  Page 2 of 13 

 

The overbilled amount totals $8,107.53 which is a sum of the various monthly fees collected from 
September 1990 through March 2018. [Attached] 
 
In the table below, the billing credit [$8107.53] is compared with cost estimates for the related 
fees and installation of Sanitary Sewer and Drinking Water service.  Also included in the table 
below, is the bill credit [$509.16] that would be due pursuant to District Ordinance 48-1998 which 
is a sum of 12 months at the current monthly fee for sewer service.  
  
The Sewer Improvements estimated at $32,217 includes the disconnection of the existing septic 
system and connection from Residence B to available sewer through the construction of a sewer 
lateral line. 
 
The Drinking Water Service estimated at $3,200 includes the installation of a water service line 
that is connected to the existing mainline in 5th Street and terminating with a meter set behind 
curb.  The customer is requesting the District pay for the installation of the service line connecting 
the meter set to Residence B. 
 

 
Billing Credit 

 
Sewer Improvements 

(Cost Estimate) 

 
Drinking Water Service 

(Cost Estimate) 

 
Bill Credit 

Ordinance 48-1998 

 
$8,107.53 

 
$32,217 

 
$3,200 

 
$509.16 

 
Options for Consideration 
 

1. Bill Credit Only: Credit the property owner in compliance with Ordinance 48-1998. 

Financial Consideration:  $509.16 
 

2. Bill Credit and Sewer Service: Credit the property owner in compliance with Ordinance 48-

1998 and sewer service. 

Financial Consideration:  $32,726.16 
 

3. Bill Credit, Sewer Service, and Drinking Water Service:  Credit the property owner in 

compliance with Ordinance 48-1998, provide sewer service and drinking water service. 

Financial Consideration: $35,926.16 
 
District staff has included these options for consideration, items that can be combined to formulate 
other options for covering the billing offset. 
 
As stated in the Agreement Update (pg.1), the property owner has requested the consideration 
of Option 3 as outlined above. 
 
 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 61 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-106  Page 3 of 13 

 

Excerpt from Ordinace 48-1998 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 62 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-106  Page 4 of 13 

 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 63 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-106  Page 5 of 13 

 

 

Billing History APN: 318-142-30 

September 1990 - June 1992 22 months @ $6.50  = $143.00  

July 1992 - September 1993 15 months @ $11.00  = $165.00  

October 1993 - June 1994 9 months @ $12.55  = $112.95  

July 1994 - July 2001 85 months @ $14.05  = $1,194.25  

August 2001 - December 2002 17 months @ $15.25  = $259.25  

January - 2003 - May 2005 29 months @ $16.35  = $474.15  

June 2005 - August 2005 3 months @ $23.44  = $70.32  

September 2005 - December 2005 4 months @ $24.32  = $97.28  

January 2006 - February 2006 2 months @ $25.20  = $50.40  

March 2006 - May 2006 3 months @ $26.08  = $78.24  

June 2006 - August 2006 3 months @ $26.98  = $80.94  

September 2006 - December 2006 4 months @ $27.85  = $111.40  

January 2007 - February 2007 2 months @ $28.73  = $57.46  

March 2007 - May 2007 3 months @ $29.61  = $88.83  

June 2007 - August 2007 3 months @ $30.49  = $91.47  

September 2007 - December 2007 4 months @ $31.37  = $125.48  

January 2008 - February 2008 2 months @ $32.25  = $64.50  

March 2008 - May 2008 3 months @ $33.14  = $99.42  

June 2008 - August 2008 3 months @ $34.02  = $102.06  

September 20008 - December 2008 4 months @ $34.90  = $139.60  

January 2009 - February 2009 2 months @ $35.78  = $71.56  

March 2009 - May 2009 3 months @ $36.66  = $109.98  

June 2009 - August 2009 3 months @ $37.54  = $112.62  

September 2009 - December 2009 4 months @ $38.43  = $153.72  

January 2010 - February 2010 2 months @ $37.97  = $75.94  

March 2010 - August 2011 18 months @ $38.43  = $691.74  

September 2011 - June 2012 10 months @ $39.43  = $394.30  

July 2012 - June 2013 12 months @ $40.43  = $485.16  

July 2013 - June 2014 12 months @ $41.43  = $497.16  

July 2014 - March 2018 45 months @ $42.43  = $1,909.35  
     

$8,107.53  

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 64 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-106  Page 6 of 13 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 65 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-106  Page 7 of 13 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 66 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-106  Page 8 of 13 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 67 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-106  Page 9 of 13 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 68 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-106  Page 10 of 13 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 69 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-106  Page 11 of 13 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 70 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-106  Page 12 of 13 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 71 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-106  Page 13 of 13 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 72 of 141



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-107 

Date: April 10, 2018 

From: Matthew Porras, Management Analyst 

Subject: Overview of a Proposed Development Agreement for a Commercial Carwash on 
Yucaipa Boulevard, Yucaipa 

 
A new carwash will be constructed in the City of Yucaipa at the intersection of Yucaipa Boulevard 
and 7th Street.  The project is in the service area of the Yucaipa Valley Water District and will be 
provided Drinking Water, Recycled Water and Sewer Service.  The carwash itself will utilize 
Recycled Water for the car wash operation as well as the landscape irrigation.  District staff has 
been corresponding with the State and Local regulators regarding the application of Recycled 
Water use with positive results.  The purpose of this item is informational, future updates will be 
provided. 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 73 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-107  Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 74 of 141



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-108 

Date: April 10, 2018 

From: Matthew Porras, Management Analyst 

Subject: Overview of a Proposed Development Agreement with Lennar Homes for the 
Summerwind Development - Calimesa 

 
In the City of Calimesa, the Summerwind residential development is underway with ‘backbone’ 
infrastructure and grading improvements.  The first home builder, Lennar Homes of California, 
Inc., has purchased Tract 32702 and Tract 32702-5.  Lennar is currently working on installing 
utilities and preparing the house pads.  Tract 32702 will have 141 units and Tract 32702-5 will 
have 105 units totaling 246 units between the two tracts.   
 
These tracts are within the Districts service area and will receive drinking water, recycled water, 
and sewer service.  The homes will be dual plumbed, utilizing recycled water for front and 
backyard irrigation.   
 
At the board meeting on March 20, 2018, the Board of Directors accepted 90.94 acre feet of 
overlying water rights for this development [Director Memorandum No. 18-047].  Information about 
the acquisition of water rights was included as part of the Beaumont Basin Watermaster meeting 
on March 28, 2018.  Other developments in the City of Calimesa within the boundary of San 
Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (SGPWA) will be subject to the Supplemental Water Facility 
Capacity Charge effective July 1, 2018 [Resolution 2017-23].  With the acquisition of water rights, 
the development will not be required to purchase seven (7) acre feet of imported supplemental 
pursuant to Resolution 11-2018.   
 
This development will be required to contribute to the sewer mainline deficiency fee currently 
collected in the Calimesa area. 
 
The table below summarizes the additional fees to the District’s standard fees that are applied in 
the City of Calimesa within the boundary of SGPWA. 
 

YVWD 
Water Sustainability Fee 

SGPWA 
Supplemental Water 

Facility Capacity Charge 

Sewer Mainline 
Deficiency Fee 

N/A N/A $1,500 

 
The purpose of this item is informational, and staff will provide future updates as the development 
progresses. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 75 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-108  Page 2 of 4 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 76 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-108  Page 3 of 4 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 77 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-108  Page 4 of 4 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 78 of 141



 

 

Administrative Items 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 79 of 141



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-109 

Date: April 10, 2018 

From: Allison M. Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 
Peggy Little, Administrative Supervisor 

Subject: Presentation of the Unaudited Financial Report for the Period Ending on March 
31, 2018 

 
The following unaudited financial report has been prepared by the Administrative Department for 
your review. The report has been divided into five sections to clearly disseminate information 
pertaining to the financial status of the District.  Please remember that the following financial 
information has not been audited. 
 

Cash Fund Balance and Cash Flow Reports 
[Detailed information can be found on page 7 to 8 of 24] 

 
The Cash Fund Balance Report provides a summary of how the total amount of funds maintained 
by financial institutions is distributed throughout the enterprise and non-enterprise funds of the 
District.  A summary of the report is as follows: 
 

Fund Source Operating Funds Restricted Funds Total Funds 

Water Division $        5,451,050.60 $         (489,953.00) $        4,961,097.60 

Sewer Division $      12,206,598.70 $      (6,321,268.61) $        5,885,330.09 

Recycled Water Division $           923,558.60 $           574,696.76 $        1,498,255.36 

Total $      18,581,207.90 $      (6,236,524.85) $      12,344,683.05 

 

($10,000,000)

($5,000,000)

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

Fund Balance

Drinking Water Fund - Operating Drinking Water Fund - Restricted

Sewer Fund - Operating Sewer Fund - Restricted

Recycled Water Fund - Operating Recycled Water Fund - Restricted

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 80 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-109 Page 2 of 24 

 

 
Most of the funds reflected in the Cash Fund Balance Report are designated for specific purposes 
and are therefore restricted, either by law or by District policy. 
 
The Cash Flow Report provides a list of the debt service payment due dates and amounts as well 
as the cash flow requirements for debt service for each month of the fiscal year.    

 
Cash Disbursement Report 

[Detailed information can be found on pages 9 to 13 of 24] 
 
The cash disbursement report lists each check and electronic payment processed during the 
month of March 2018.  All payments are reviewed by District staff for accuracy and completeness, 
checks are usually signed by the General Manager and one Director, but may be signed by two 
Directors.  The Chief Financial Officer will make any check, payment, invoice or supporting 
documentation available for review to any board member upon request.   
 

 Number Processed Amount Processed 

Checks 239 $             1,251,117.25 

Electronic Payments 16 $                287,261.50 

Total 255 $             1,538,378.75 

 

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000
Cash Position

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 81 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-109 Page 3 of 24 

 

Financial Account Information 
 

The District currently deposits all revenue received into the Deposit Checking account.  The 
General Checking account is used as a sole processing account for all District checks and 
electronic payroll.  The Investment Checking account is used for the purchase and redemption of 
US treasury notes and bills and for the transfer of LAIF funds.  The US treasury notes and bills 
are booked at cost. 
 
The LAIF investment account is a pooled money account administered by the State of California.  
Additional information on the LAIF account is provided below in the investment summary report. 
 
Monthly Revenue Allocation: 
 

Funding Source Total 
Utility Bill Payments $        1,837,683.12 
Deposits $                           0 
Misc. Water Related Activities $             69,071.69 
Misc. Sewer Related Activities $             19,212.31 
Misc. Recycled Related Activities $             55,336.81 

Total $        1,981,303.93 

 

 
 
  

 $-

 $300,000

 $600,000

 $900,000

 $1,200,000

 $1,500,000

 $1,800,000

 $2,100,000

 $2,400,000

 $2,700,000

 Utility Bill Payments Deposits Misc Water Misc Sewer Misc Recycled

Monthly Revenue Allocation

2015-16 March 2016-17 March 2017-18 March

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 82 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-109 Page 4 of 24 

 

Summary of Utility Bill Payments: 
 

Payment Method Number of 
Payments 

% of Total 
Received 

Mail/Counter 6,077 36.88% 

Payment Center 52 0.32% 

Credit Card 1,046 6.35% 

Electronic Rapid Pay 4,295 26.07% 

Web Site 1,922 11.66% 

ACH Auto Pay 3,085 18.72% 

Total 16,477 100.00% 

 

 Mail/Counter

Payment Center

Credit Card

Electronic/    Rapid Pay

Web Site

ACH Auto Pay

Total

Type of Payments

2017-18 March 2016-17 March 2015-16 March

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 83 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-109 Page 5 of 24 

 

Summary of Property Tax Revenue: 
 

Current Month Year-to-Date Allocation 
Amount* 

Percentage 

Property Taxes $1,936,935.48 $    3,132,456.68         61.83% 

 
 

Investment Summary  
[Detailed information can be found on pages 14 to 15 of 24] 

 
The investment summary report illustrates the District's investments in US treasury notes and bills 
in addition to the investments held by the Local Agency Investment Fund or LAIF.  The yields for 
the treasury notes and bills are provided for each individual transaction.  The historical annual 
yield for funds invested with LAIF is also provided. 
 
Separate pooled money investment reports prepared by the State of California are maintained by 
the District and available for review. 
 
Investment Policy Disclosure - The District is currently compliant with the portfolio of its Investment 
Policy and State law.  The District is using Sandy Gage with Merrill Lynch Wealth Management 
(Bank of America Corporation) for Treasury investments.  The District expects to meet its 
expenditure requirements for the next six months. 
 

Fiscal Year 2017-18 Detail Budget Status 
[Detailed information can be found on pages 16 to 24 of 24] 

 
The revenue and expense budget status for the 2017-18 Fiscal Year is provided for your review.  

 
 

  

$
2

,9
3

4
,5

4
3

.6
1

 

$
3

,0
7

9
,0

6
4

.6
5

 

$
1

,9
3

6
,9

3
5

.4
8

 

$
2

,8
4

3
,3

0
8

.9
6

 

$
2

,9
8

8
,6

3
4

.3
8

 

$
3

,1
3

2
,4

5
6

.6
8

 

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

 2015-16  2016-17  2017-18

Property Taxes - Actual vs. Allocation

Actual Allocation

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 84 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-109 Page 6 of 24 

 

Questions or Comments 
 
If you have any questions about a particular budget account, please do not hesitate to contact the 
Chief Financial Officer directly.  If you need additional information, the members of the 
Administrative Department would be happy to provide you with any detailed information you may 
desire. 
 

 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 85 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-109 Page 7 of 24 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 86 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-109 Page 8 of 24 

 

 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 87 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-109 Page 9 of 24 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 88 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-109 Page 10 of 24 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 89 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-109 Page 11 of 24 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 90 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-109 Page 12 of 24 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 91 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-109 Page 13 of 24 

 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 92 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-109 Page 14 of 24 

 

 
 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 93 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-109 Page 15 of 24 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 94 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-109 Page 16 of 24 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 95 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-109 Page 17 of 24 

 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 96 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-109 Page 18 of 24 

 

 
 
 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 97 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-109 Page 19 of 24 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 98 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-109 Page 20 of 24 

 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 99 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-109 Page 21 of 24 

 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 100 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-109 Page 22 of 24 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 101 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-109 Page 23 of 24 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 102 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-109 Page 24 of 24 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 103 of 141



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-110 

Date: April 10, 2018 

From: Allison M. Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject: Presentation of Budget Adjustments for Fiscal Year 2017-18 

 
The following are adjustments to the 2017-18 Modified budget based on trending and/or items 
that were not anticipated when the initial budget was adopted in June 2017 nor when the first 
group of budget adjustments was approved in November 2017.  
 
For all three funds (water, sewer, and recycled) there is a slight increase in both revenue and 
expenses as a result of Interest Revenue trending higher than initially anticipated.  After the 
adjustments, this continues to be a balanced budget. 
 
District staff will continue to do budget adjustments twice each fiscal year.  This will be the last 
adjustment for Fiscal Year 2017-18.   
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 104 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-110  Page 2 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 105 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-110  Page 3 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 106 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-110  Page 4 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 107 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-110  Page 5 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 108 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-110  Page 6 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 109 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-110  Page 7 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 110 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-110  Page 8 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 111 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-110  Page 9 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 112 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-110  Page 10 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 113 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-110  Page 11 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 114 of 141



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-111 

Date: April 10, 2018 

From: Kathryn Hallberg, Management Analyst 

Subject: Review of a Proposal for Environmental Liability Insurance for Sewer and Brineline 
Operations 

 
The District staff has been reviewing the addition of environmental liability insurance to specifically 
provide coverage for 232 miles of sewer pipelines, 5 lift stations, and 19 miles of brineline.  The 
District requested a quote from Alliant Insurance Services.  
 
The proposed environmental liability insurance would include coverage for: 

• Clean up of affected sites; 

• Emergency Response; 

• Environmental Crisis; 

• Insured Location; 

• Non-Owned Site; 

• Transportation; 

• Covered Operations; 

• Defense, Supplementary Payments and Settlement; and 

• Terrorism - Optional. 
 
The attached quote is attached.   

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 115 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-111  Page 2 of 17 

 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 116 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-111  Page 3 of 17 

 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 117 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-111  Page 4 of 17 

 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 118 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-111  Page 5 of 17 

 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 119 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-111  Page 6 of 17 

 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 120 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-111  Page 7 of 17 

 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 121 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-111  Page 8 of 17 

 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 122 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-111  Page 9 of 17 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 123 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-111  Page 10 of 17 

 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 124 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-111  Page 11 of 17 

 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 125 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-111  Page 12 of 17 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 126 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-111  Page 13 of 17 

 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 127 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-111  Page 14 of 17 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 128 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-111  Page 15 of 17 

 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 129 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-111  Page 16 of 17 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 130 of 141



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-111  Page 17 of 17 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 131 of 141



 

 

Director Comments 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 132 of 141



 

 

Adjournment 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 133 of 141



January 2016 
 

 
 

FACTS ABOUT THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 

Service Area Size: 40 square miles (sphere of influence is 68 square miles) 
 

Elevation Change: 3,140 foot elevation change (from 2,044 to 5,184 feet) 
 

Number of Employees: 5 elected board members 
62 full time employees 

 

Operating Budget: Water Division - $13,397,500 
 Sewer Division - $11,820,000 
 Recycled Water Division - $537,250 
 Total Annual Budget - $25,754,750 
 

Number of Services: 12,434 water connections serving 17,179 units 
13,559 sewer connections serving 20,519 units 
64 recycled water connections 

 

Water System: 215 miles of drinking water pipelines 
27 reservoirs - 34 million gallons of storage capacity 
18 pressure zones 
12,000 ac-ft annual water demand (3.9 billion gallons) 
Two water filtration facilities: 

- 1 mgd at Oak Glen Surface Water Filtration Facility 
- 12 mgd at Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 

 

Sewer System: 8.0 million gallon treatment capacity - current flow at 4.0 mgd 
205 miles of sewer mainlines 
5 sewer lift stations 
4,500 ac-ft annual recycled water prod. (1.46 billion gallons) 

 

Recycled Water: 22 miles of recycled water pipelines 
5 reservoirs - 12 million gallons of storage 
1,200 ac-ft annual recycled demand (0.4 billion gallons) 

 

Brine Disposal:  2.2 million gallon desalination facility at sewer treatment plant 
1.108 million gallons of Inland Empire Brine Line capacity 

 0.295 million gallons of treatment capacity in Orange County  
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 134 of 141



January 2016 
 

State Water Contractors: San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
 San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
 

 
 

Sustainability Plan: A Strategic Plan for a Sustainable Future: The Integration and 
Preservation of Resources, adopted on August 20, 2008. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 135 of 141



January 2016 
 

 
  

THE MEASUREMENT OF WATER PURITY 
 

One part per hundred is generally represented by the percent (%).  
This is equivalent to about fifteen minutes out of one day. 

 
One part per thousand denotes one part per 1000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about one and a half minutes out of one day. 
 
One part per million (ppm) denotes one part per 1,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about 32 seconds out of a year. 
 
One part per billion (ppb) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000 parts.   

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of a century. 
 
One part per trillion (ppt) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000 parts. 

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of every hundred thousand years. 
 
One part per quadrillion (ppq) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about two and a half minutes out of the age of the Earth (4.5 
billion years).  

 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 136 of 141



January 2016 
 

 
  

GLOSSARY OF COMMONLY USED TERMS 
 
Every profession has specialized terms which generally evolve to facilitate communication between individuals.  
The routine use of these terms tends to exclude those who are unfamiliar with the particular specialized language 
of the group.  Sometimes jargon can create communication cause difficulties where professionals in related fields 
use different terms for the same phenomena. 

Below are commonly used water terms and abbreviations with commonly used definitions.  If there is any 
discrepancy in definitions, the District's Regulations Governing Water Service is the final and binding definition.  

 

Acre Foot of Water - The volume of water (325,850 gallons, or 43,560 cubic feet) that would cover an area of 
one acre to a depth of 1 foot.  

Activated Sludge Process – A secondary biological sewer treatment process where bacteria reproduce at a 
high rate with the introduction of excess air or oxygen, and consume dissolved nutrients in the wastewater. 

Annual Water Quality Report - The document is prepared annually and provides information on water quality, 
constituents in the water, compliance with drinking water standards and educational material on tap water.  It is 
also referred to as a Consumer Confidence Report (CCR).  

Aquifer - The natural underground area with layers of porous, water-bearing materials (sand, gravel) capable of 
yielding a supply of water; see Groundwater basin.  

Backflow - The reversal of water's normal direction of flow.  When water passes through a water meter into a 
home or business it should not reverse flow back into the water mainline.  

Best Management Practices (BMPs) - Methods or techniques found to be the most effective and practical 
means in achieving an objective.  Often used in the context of water conservation.  

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) – The amount of oxygen used when organic matter undergoes 
decomposition by microorganisms.  Testing for BOD is done to assess the amount of organic matter in water. 

Biosolids – Biosolids are nutrient rich organic and highly treated solid materials produced by the sewer treatment 
process.  This high-quality product can be used as a soil amendment on farm land or further processed as an 
earth-like product for commercial and home gardens to improve and maintain fertile soil and stimulate plant 
growth. 

Catch Basin – A chamber usually built at the curb line of a street, which conveys surface water for discharge 
into a storm sewer. 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) – Projects for repair, rehabilitation, and replacement of assets.  Also 
includes treatment improvements, additional capacity, and projects for the support facilities. 

Collector Sewer – The first element of a wastewater collection system used to collect and carry wastewater 
from one or more building sewer laterals to a main sewer. 

Coliform Bacteria – A group of bacteria found in the intestines of humans and other animals, but also 
occasionally found elsewhere and is generally used as an indicator of sewage pollution.   

Combined Sewer Overflow – The portion of flow from a combined sewer system, which discharges into a water 
body from an outfall located upstream of a wastewater treatment plant, usually during wet weather conditions. 

Combined Sewer System– Generally older sewer systems designed to convey both sewage and storm water 
into one pipe to a wastewater treatment plant. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 137 of 141



January 2016 
 

Conjunctive Use - The coordinated management of surface water and groundwater supplies to maximize the 
yield of the overall water resource.  Active conjunctive use uses artificial recharge, where surface water is 
intentionally percolated or injected into aquifers for later use.  Passive conjunctive use is to simply rely on surface 
water in wet years and use groundwater in dry years. 

Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) - see Annual Water Quality Report.  

Cross-Connection - The actual or potential connection between a potable water supply and a non-potable 
source, where it is possible for a contaminant to enter the drinking water supply. 

Disinfection By-Products (DBPs) - The category of compounds formed when disinfectants in water systems 
react with natural organic matter present in the source water supplies.  Different disinfectants produce different 
types or amounts of disinfection byproducts. Disinfection byproducts for which regulations have been established 
have been identified in drinking water, including trihalomethanes, haloacetic acids, bromate, and chlorite 

Drought - a period of below average rainfall causing water supply shortages.  

Dry Weather Flow – Flow in a sanitary sewer during periods of dry weather in which the sanitary sewer is under 
minimum influence of inflow and infiltration. 

Fire Flow - The ability to have a sufficient quantity of water available to the distribution system to be delivered 
through fire hydrants or private fire sprinkler systems.  

Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) - A measurement of the average number of gallons of water use by the 
number of people served each day in a water system. The calculation is made by dividing the total gallons of 
water used each day by the total number of people using the water system.  

Groundwater Basin - An underground body of water or aquifer defined by physical boundaries.  

Groundwater Recharge - The process of placing water in an aquifer.  Can be a naturally occurring process or 
artificially enhanced.  

Hard Water - Water having a high concentration of minerals, typically calcium and magnesium ions.  

Hydrologic Cycle - The process of evaporation of water into the air and its return to earth in the form of 
precipitation (rain or snow).  This process also includes transpiration from plants, percolation into the ground, 
groundwater movement, and runoff into rivers, streams and the ocean; see Water cycle.  

Infiltration – Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and/or building laterals from the ground 
through defective pipes, pipe joints, connections, or manholes.  Infiltration does not include inflow.  See Inflow. 

Inflow - Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and building sewer from sources such as roof 
vents, yard drains, area drains, foundation drains, drains from springs and swampy areas, manhole covers, cross 
connections between storm drains and sanitary sewers, catch basins, cooling towers, storm waters, surface 
runoff, street wash waters, or drainage.  Inflow does not include infiltration.  See Infiltration. 

Inflow / Infiltration (I/I) – The total quantity of water from both inflow and infiltration. 

Mains, Distribution - A network of pipelines that delivers water (drinking water or recycled water) from 
transmission mains to residential and commercial properties, usually pipe diameters of 4" to 16".  

Mains, Transmission - A system of pipelines that deliver water (drinking water or recycled water) from a source 
of supply the distribution mains, usually pipe diameters of greater than 16".  

Meter - A device capable of measuring, in either gallons or cubic feet, a quantity of water delivered by the District 
to a service connection.  

Overdraft - The pumping of water from a groundwater basin or aquifer in excess of the supply flowing into the 
basin. This pumping results in a depletion of the groundwater in the basin which has a net effect of lowering the 
levels of water in the aquifer.  

Peak Flow – The maximum flow that occurs over a specific length of time (e.g., daily, hourly, instantaneously). 

Pipeline - Connected piping that carries water, oil or other liquids.  See Mains, Distribution and Mains, 
Transmission. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 138 of 141



January 2016 
 

Point of Responsibility, Metered Service - The connection point at the outlet side of a water meter where a 
landowner's responsibility for all conditions, maintenance, repairs, use and replacement of water service facilities 
begins, and the District's responsibility ends.  

Potable Water - Water that is used for human consumption and regulated by the California Department of Public 
Health.  

Pressure Reducing Valve - A device used to reduce the pressure in a domestic water system when the water 
pressure exceeds desirable levels.  

Pump Station - A drinking water or recycled water facility where pumps are used to push water up to a higher 
elevation or different location.  

Reservoir - A water storage facility where water is stored to be used at a later time for peak demands or 
emergencies such as fire suppression.  Drinking water and recycled water systems will typically use concrete or 
steel reservoirs.  The State Water Project system considers lakes, such as Shasta Lake and Folsom Lake to be 
water storage reservoirs. 

Runoff - Water that travels downward over the earth's surface due to the force of gravity.  It includes water 
running in streams as well as over land.  

Sanitary Sewer System - Sewer collection system designed to carry sewage, consisting of domestic, 
commercial, and industrial wastewater. This type of system is not designed nor intended to carry water from 
rainfall, snowmelt, or groundwater sources.  See Combined Sewer System. 

Sanitary Sewer Overflow – Overflow from a sanitary sewer system caused when total wastewater flow exceeds 
the capacity of the system.  See Combined Sewer Overflow. 

Santa Ana River Interceptor (SARI) Line – A regional brine line designed to convey 30 million gallons per day 
of non-reclaimable wastewater from the upper Santa Ana River basin to the sewer treatment plant operated by 
Orange County Sanitation District. 

Secondary Treatment – Biological sewer treatment, particularly the activated-sludge process, where bacteria 
and other microorganisms consume dissolved nutrients in wastewater. 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) - A computerized system which provides the ability to 
remotely monitor and control water system facilities such as reservoirs, pumps and other elements of water 
delivery.  

Service Connection - The water piping system connecting a customer's system with a District water main 
beginning at the outlet side of the point of responsibility, including all plumbing and equipment located on a parcel 
required for the District's provision of water service to that parcel.  

Sludge – Untreated solid material created by the treatment of sewage. 

Smart Irrigation Controller - A device that automatically adjusts the time and frequency which water is applied 
to landscaping based on real-time weather such as rainfall, wind, temperature and humidity.  

Special District - A political subdivision of a state established to provide a public services, such as water supply 
or sanitation, within a specific geographic area.   

Surface Water - Water found in lakes, streams, rivers, oceans or reservoirs behind dams.  

Total Suspended Solids (TSS) – The amount of solids floating and in suspension in water or sewage. 

Transpiration - The process by which water vapor is released into the atmosphere by living plants.  

Trickling Filter – A biological secondary treatment process in which bacteria and other microorganisms, growing 
as slime on the surface of rocks or plastic media, consume nutrients in primary treated sewage as it trickles over 
them. 

Underground Service Alert (USA) - A free service that notifies utilities such as water, telephone, cable and 
sewer companies of pending excavations within the area (dial 8-1-1 at least 2 working days before you dig).  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 139 of 141



January 2016 
 

Urban Runoff - Water from city streets and domestic properties that typically carries pollutants into the storm 
drains, rivers, lakes, and oceans. 

Valve - A device that regulates, directs or controls the flow of water by opening, closing or partially obstructing 
various passageways.  

Wastewater – Any water that enters the sanitary sewer. 

Water Banking - The practice of actively storing or exchanging in-lieu surface water supplies in available 
groundwater basin storage space for later extraction and use by the storing party or for sale or exchange to a 
third party.  Water may be banked as an independent operation or as part of a conjunctive use program.  

Water cycle - The continuous movement water from the earth's surface to the atmosphere and back again; see 
Hydrologic cycle.  

Water Pressure - Pressure created by the weight and elevation of water and/or generated by pumps that deliver 
water to the tap.  

Water Service Line - The pipeline that delivers potable water to a residence or business from the District's water 
system.  Typically the water service line is a 1” to 1½” diameter pipe for residential properties.  

Watershed - A region or land area that contributes to the drainage or catchment area above a specific point on 
a stream or river.  

Water Table - The upper surface of the zone of saturation of groundwater in an unconfined aquifer.  

Water Transfer - A transaction, in which a holder of a water right or entitlement voluntarily sells/exchanges to a 
willing buyer the right to use all or a portion of the water under that water right or entitlement.  

Water Well - A hole drilled into the ground to tap an underground water aquifer.  

Wetlands - Lands which are fully saturated or under water at least part of the year, like seasonal vernal pools 
or swamps.  

Wet Weather Flow – Dry weather flow combined with stormwater introduced into a combined sewer system, 
and dry weather flow combined with infiltration/inflow into a separate sewer system. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 140 of 141



January 2016 
 

 
  

COMMONLY USED ABBREVIATIONS 
 

AQMD Air Quality Management District 

BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand 

CARB California Air Resources Board 

CCTV Closed Circuit Television 

CWA Clean Water Act 

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

FOG Fats, Oils, and Grease 

GPD Gallons per day 

MGD Million gallons per day 

O & M Operations and Maintenance 

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration  

POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

PPM Parts per million 

RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board  

SARI Santa Ana River Inceptor 

SAWPA Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority 

SBVMWD San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 

SCADA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system 

SSMP Sanitary Sewer Management Plan 

SSO Sanitary Sewer Overflow 

SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board  

TDS Total Dissolved Solids 

TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load 

TSS Total Suspended Solids 

WDR Waste Discharge Requirements 

YVWD Yucaipa Valley Water District 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 10, 2018 - Page 141 of 141




